“HERSTORY” OF THE STEPHENVILLE BRANCH OF AAUW

On the evening of October 17, 1933, a group of women met in the Home Economics Building of John Tarleton College for the purpose of organizing the Stephenville Branch of the American Association of University Women.

Miss Mattie Walker, Head of the Department of Home Economics of the College, served as chairman for the group and appointed a committee to draw up a constitution and by-laws and a committee for the nominating of officers.

Since most of the members of the group belonged to study clubs and were carrying a very busy schedule of school and community work, the suggestion that the club be a luncheon and dinner club met with the approval of the entire group. The purpose, among other things, was to give members a bit of delightful recreation and afford an opportunity to know better the personnel of the club and to study the very splendid developments that the organization might offer

 
At a second business meeting, the officers were elected and a constitution was presented. Local dues were set at a dollar a year. Each member would have to pay for her plate at the meal. Most of the meetings were held in the homes of the members and those, which involved guests, were held at the Mothershead Cottage, a local boarding house owned by one of the members. The first officers elected were as follows: Miss Lorraine Yarbrough as President; Mrs. A.A. McSweeny as Vice-President: Miss Lucy King as Secretary; and Miss Laura Fellman as Treasurer.  Sixteen members answered roll call that year.

The next year the Branch gained seven members but lost two due to individuals moving.  According to the written record

 "The programs for the second year consisted of a series of programs presented by the different committees; hence they were of miscellaneous nature with no very definite objective other than the desire to increase the knowledge of the different members of the Branch as to the possibilities that might be included in the field of the work of the National and International Divisions…The year closed with all members appreciating more and more the value of their affiliation with the American Association of University Women."

  Miss May Jones of the John Tarleton College mathematics department attended the National convention in Los Angeles in June of 1933. This was the beginning of her involvement in the national and state organization. It also marked the beginning of a tradition of hosting the State President each year, a tradition that lasted for over 30 years. May Jones served as State Treasurer in1947-1949; State President in 1949-1951; Fellowship Chairman, 1955-1957; Member of the State Education Committee, 1959-1963; and State Historian, 1967-1973. She also served as the local president from 1936-1938.

  Programs during the years were such as to educate the women on current and cultural affairs. The members were active in the community, especially during World War II. The minutes record the many activities of the group during this period. In 1939, the Legislation Committee became the Legislative, Economic, and Legal Status of Women. The members were active in contacting legislative members on matters of importance to women, such as educational financing. In 1943, they studied the National Program on civilian economy, the Equal Rights Amendment, and legal discriminations against women, such as women being excluded from jury duty, limitations on a married woman's ability to control her earnings, and not being able to sign contracts.

  In 1947, dues were increased to $6.00 and membership increased to 46.  Meetings were no longer held in members' homes but at Tarleton's Dining Hall. The featured speaker of the year was Judge Sarah T. Hughes who spoke on "Woman's Challenges in Today's World." (Note: This was pre-Kennedy assassination.) 

      Throughout the years, members have held offices at the State level and have attended both State and National Conventions.   In 2005, Dr. Kathy Smith was elected to serve as the Secretary for the AAUW North Texas Inter-Branch.  The Stephenville Branch has several traditions that have lasted for many years. One, the hosting of a "seated tea" for Stephenville High School senior girls, has evolved into a dinner for senior girls who apply for a scholarship to be used at Tarleton State University. The applicants come from schools in the area of each member. Thus they have come from eight schools in two counties.  In 2004, the Branch designated the scholarship to be named "The AAUW Rosellen Davis Scholarship" in honor of a recently deceased member who had been a member for over 40 years.  The money for the scholarship is raised through a book sale held every spring and a silent auction at the December meeting.  In 2005, the Branch raised enough money to have the scholarship endowed.

In 1994 the Branch held a Science and Sports Camp at the Stephenville City Park for girls in 5th through 8th grades.  It is now called “Expanding Your Horizons in Math and Science” and is presently held at the Science Building at Tarleton State University.  Outstanding speakers are chosen from local women who are actively employed in Science or Mathematics related fields. The attendance has been at least 50-60 per year.  Each year, a number of boys show interest and attend.  Local merchants and businesses donate door prizes and items for "goody bags.” 

     The Branch is currently looking at ways to help counsel high school  students in preparation for what they will face in college. Previously they were involved in the community with other women's groups and are again attempting to do that.  In April 2006, the Stephenville Branch of AAUW will co-sponsor a “Women Helping Women” seminar with the local Business and Professional Women’s organization. 

Our meetings are currently being held at a local church which offers better parking than Tarleton State University.  The Branch is looking forward to its 75th anniversary in 2008. The membership has had its ups and downs but the Branch has remained active for all that time.    

